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DEER ISLAND HOUSE OF CORRECTION,
HILL PRISON (WOMEN'S PRISON) HABS No. MA-1250-A

Deer Island, Northeast quadrant, about 520 feet
south of the north shore of the island and 570
feet west of the east shore. City of Boston,
Suffolk County, Massachusetts.

U.S.G.S. HULL, MA Quadrangle (1971) Universal
Transverse Mercator Coordinates:
19.338500.4690700

City of Boston, Suffolk County, Massachusetts.

Administrative Offices of the Superintendent of
the Deer Island House of Correction.

Architecturally, Hill Prison is the culmination
of the Palladian form of penal institutions
utilized in Boston for over one hundred

vears. It is the final stage in the evolution of
institutional designs with central core pavilion
and flanking wings. Although the Hill (Women's)
Prison has traditional form and materials, the
details of the structure reveal several
structural and technological advances. The Hill
Prison, described at the time of its
construction as "a model of its kind,"
represents an attempt to modernize a traditional
form to meet twentieth century standards.
Socially, Hill Prison incorporated modernized
reform programs with provision of separate
facilities relevant to the needs of women
inmates; they were ministered to by chaplains
and teachers who provided rehabilitation and
education rather than mere incarceration.
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Part I. Historical Information

A,

1.

Physical History

Date of Erection: 1901-1904

The building, although dated at its front entrance with a
carved stone inscription "A.D. 1901," was constructed
between 1901 and 1904. According to the annual reports of
the Penal Institutions Department of the City of Boston
during that time, construction of the foundation started in
1901 and the prison was half occupied by women at the end
of 1904.

Architect: A. Warren Gould (died, 1922)

Born in Boston at an undetermined date, A.Warren Gould
ended his career in Seattle. According to Withey's American
Architects, Mr. Gould may have been the son of Aaron A. Gould
(1854-1930), a Nova Scotian who began his work in Boston
and ended his career in Detroit where his largest building
was the Wayne County Women's Prison. Carl F. Gould (1877~
1939) another Seattle architect, a native of New York and a
member of Harvard's Class of 1898 as well as of the firm of
McKim, Mead and White, may also have been a relative.
A.Warren Gould's early work in Boston consisted primarily
of residences for family members and others in Dorchester,
a Boston suburb. His office was in Boston at 178
Devonshire Street from 1895 until 1904 when he moved to
Seattle. In Boston he was noted primarily for wooden
residential architecture, primarily for his Dorchester
friends and relatives, until the design of his Women's
Prison at Deer Island brought him national recognition.
After his move to Seattle, he reportedly "planned many
important buildings, ™ and he was said to have been "the
first to have used reinforced concrete to any extent, in
the erection of his buildings" according to his obituary in

The Architect and Engineer of October, 1922.

Gould's only known nonresidential work in Dorchester was
Whiton Hall, the meeting place of the Dorchester Women's
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Club. This was a neoclassical Palladian wooden building
near Codman Square. Dorchester High School on the adjacent
site was completed in 1901 by architects Hartwell
Richardson and Driver and had some elements in common with

Gould's Women's Prison of 1901-1904. Gould's connections
with the Dorchester Women's Club may have had an influence
on his selection as the architect of the new Women's Prison
at Deer Island in 1901; Mrs. Florence Garrettson Spooner
who represented the Women's Prison Association may also
have had connections with the Dorchester Club's membership.
Gould was paid $23,085.61 for his work on the Prison. An
exhibit planned by the City of Boston for the St. Louis
Exposition in 1904 included a plan of the Deer Island House
of Correction (FrOUTE~HiBGuioumdiimbaddod,) , and may account
for Gould's subsequent national recognition and his move to
Seattle that year.

Original and Subsequent Owners:

On April 1,1634 Deer Island was granted to Town of Boston
by the Massachusetts Bay Colony. The original owner of the
Hill Prison was the City of Boston Penal Institutions
Department, Deer Island House of Correction. Jurisdiction
of the prison shifted to the Suffolk County Corrections
Department in 1931, Subsequent to the 1991 closing of the
prison, the Massachusetts Water Resources Authority (MWRA)
is expected to take title to the Deer Island House of
Correction as part of its new secondary wastewater
treatment facility, now under the initial phase of
construction. The MWRA plans to demolish the Hill Prison to
permit the construction of this vast new treatment plant.

Builder, Contractor and Suppliers:

Mack and Moore of Boston were the general contractors who
built the Hill Prison. The relative amounts and types of
work by the different contractors, as recorded in the

complete cost breakdown published in The Annual Report of the
Penal Institutions of January 1905, are as follows:
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w _H £ r i lan
Appropriation . . . . . . . $480, 000
Expenditures:
Mack & Moore, General Cont-
ractors (in full) . . . . $373,496. 12
E.C. Lewis, Electrical Contract
(in full) . . . . . 23,426. 90
A.A. Sanborn, boiler and pipe
work (in full). . . . . 8,376. 00
Hodge Boiler Works, boiler
contract (in full) . . . 3,586. 00
A. Warren Gould, Archltect . . 23,085, 61
Salary of Clerk of the Work . . 3,910. 00
Lumber, lime, brick and cement 5 5,256. 01

Moving, re-erecting, cleaning,
and repairing organ from
House of Correction, South

Boston . . . . . 500. 00
French & Hubbard engineers . . 948. 10
Sewer Pipes and Bends . . . 1,322. 62
Printing Specifications . . . 209. 26
Typewriting . . . . . 34. 00
Advertising . . . . . 544. 09
Blue prints . . . 734. 20
Plumbing and Stem- flttlng

materials . . . . . . 373. 18
Hardware . . . . . . 273. 59
Windows . . . . . 15. 40
Oils and brushes, etc. . . . 32. 02
Chimney-cap . . . . . 221. 00
Copper—cap . . . . . 30. 00
Roofing felt . . . . . 46. 66
Castings . . . . . . 67. 37
Boston Water Dept. connections . . 46. 84
Sprinkler wagon, . . . . 190. 00
Plow . . . . . . . 19. 79
Roller . . . . . . 118. 64
Furniture. . . . . . 927. 50

Looking glasses. . . . . 200. 20
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Sheet copper . . . . . 33. 30
Moving furniture . . . . 3. 00
Laundry machinery . . . . 1,477. 08
Walker & Pratt Mfg. Co. . . . 1,759. 00
Keniston Engineering Co. . . 377, 80

$455,713. 98

The Annual Report of the Penal Institutions Boston, January 1905.

Original Plans and Construction:

No original plans for the Hill Prison have yet been found;
this appears to be due to fires in 1929 and 1949 in which
records are said to have been destroyed or disappeared.
Architectural drawings dating to 1976 document the building
at that time and are shown with supplemental material.
Later photographs and these plans show the original layout
of the building, which is relatively little changed. The
central five story core of the "T" shaped structure,
composed of granite on the two lower floors with brick
above, housed the administrative and security offices.
Flanking brick east and west wings held interior free-
standing, stacked four level concrete cell blocks accessed
by cantilevered open walkways separated from the exterior
walls by open space. The rear or north wing housed support
facilities including work rooms, kitchens, laundries and
storage on the first level, above which were the level two
dining room, the level three "multi-purpose" auditorium
with stage and balcony, office and chapel and the level
four recreation room.

As described in the 1902 Annual Report of the Pepnal Institutions,
the building was intended for the inmates from the old
House of Correction at South Boston: "When it is completed
during this year, [actually late in 1904] it is presumed
that all inmates of the South Boston Institution will be
removed to Deer Island, as it is believed that then the
facilities at Deer Island will be ample for both
institutions. This building will be used entirely for
women, and will contain cells, chapel, workrooms, etc., and
it promises to be a model of its kind."
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Indeed, as the details of the surviving building show (see
drawings and photographs appended), the building was a
showplace of enlightened institutional design. The
Palladian entrance with its interior vestibules and halls
supported by cast plaster columns with Tuscan, Doric and
Ionic capitals; the assembly hall or multi-purpose
auditorium with its pilastered proscenium arch, vaulted
ceilings and chapel with tripartite Gothic-Romanesque
windows were all designed to edify the women inmates.

In conjunction with the building's construction as recorded
in the 1904 Annual Report, the wharf was entirely

reconstructed; a new steamboat, the Monitor, replaced the
old J.Putnam Bradlee ferry; a reservoir of 2,500,000
gallons capacity was being built under the supervision of
the City Engineer to ensure fire protection. Showers were
added in the old as well as the new prison. The plant to
supply heat to the new building was completed along with a
washing and laundry plant which was installed in one of the
vacated older buildings.

Alterations and additions:

Alterations and additions to the building have been for the
most part superficial, and include modifications in
connection with a change in use from a women's to an all-
male institution in 1920. On the exterior, chimneys have
been removed, roof vents and roofing have been removed and
altered after 1976. Eaves, cornices, entablature friezes
and pediment trim on the gable-ends of the wings were
removed by 1976. Since 1929, the end bays of the structure
have had their openings bricked up along with the occi
windows in the pediments. The north wing multi~purpose room
and chapel have been replaced by modern window units while
recreation room windows have been covered over on the
exterior circa 1980. New window units and steel bars have
been installed at most locations circa 1980. The main
entrance doorway has been altered since 1985 with
superficial infill of former sidelight openings.

The 1976 drawings were prepared by Masiello and Associates,
architects with offices at 71 Elm Street, Worcester. These
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plans for an unimplemented renovation reveal some later
changes when cross-referenced with an inspection of the
building as part of this documentation. In plan, exterior
gallery corridors along both sides of the north wing have
been added and removed at the second floor dining hall
level. On the interior, the kitchen has been relocated from
the first floor to the second floor of the north wing, and
partitioned off from the old dining hall. Office areas at
the first floor of the core block have been updated to
accommodate modern lighting and security equipment, along
with more modern plumbing to serve both prisoners and
administrative personnel. A new exterior door has been
installed at the prison security center to the right of the
main entrance. New emergency exits have been added at the
extreme ends of the flanking east and west wings. The back
portion of the north wing at the third level has been gutted
and replaced with modern studio space and bathroom
facilities.

Historical Context -
Topography and Setting:

The 1904 Hill Prison was built on the north slope of Signal
Hill on Deer Island and faces south toward the Harbor and
Boston. The main approach to the Prison is from the
Administration Building to the southwest (See Site Plan).
The Hill Prison building faces the sites of earlier school
buildings and occupies a plot of ground that was considered
for an almshouse as early as 1870. The site for the new
prison, intended as an exemplary correctional facility, was
chosen in 1901 by the Penal Institutions Department. The
"House of Correction” and its original relationship to the
other buildings is shown on the plan for the St. Louis
Exposition which indicates its importance as a major element

of the prison complex (See-HABS.Eiguse Nl —teposi
for-Lhe Comp leXmelliBe N @umdlfrd ) .

History of the Hill Prison
a. Background and Initial Construction

The relocation of the House of Correction from South Boston
had been considered for several years by the end of the
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nineteenth century. The Annual Report of the Penal Institutions
for the year 1901-02 reported: "In 1900, the Legislature, by

an act, authorized the removal of the House of Correction at
South Boston to Deer Island. In pursuance of this
legislation, a contract to build a women's prison at Deer
Island has been awarded, and the work of laying the
foundation has progressed as fast as possible. The work,
which has been interrupted by winter weather, will be
resumed in the early spring. According to the terms of this
contract, the building is to be completed during this year.”
Hence the ornamental datestones' two components, one each
side of the Palladian entrance, read "A.D....1901."

However, Penal Institutions Department Commissioner John B.
Martin reported on February 1, 1904 that "The new House of
Correction is nearing completion. I was in hopes that it
would be ready for occupancy early in the spring, but it
will not be until late in the fall." By January of 1905, the
Commissioner reported "The new House of Correction is
completed and is now occupied by about one-half of the
female prisoners, and in a few weeks, all the women on the
island will be housed in the new prison. An altar is being
erected and settees built to furnish the new chapel, which
will be ready to use in a very short time."

The Prison represents a turn-of-the-century attempt to
modernize a traditional form to meet twentieth century
standards and was described as "a model of its kind."
Socially, it incorporated modernized reform programs to
provide separate facilities relevant to the needs of women
inmates; they were ministered to by chaplains and teachers
who provided rehabilitation and education in addition to
simple incarceration.

b. Changes in Use

In addition to new physical facilities, educatiocnal and
reform programs were instituted in 1905 at the Women's
Prison, according to the Penal Institutions' annual report.
Catholic and Protestant religious services were held in the
Chapel,and the Commissioner reported that "clergymen of both
denominations are untiring in their efforts to aid the
prisoners in every proper manner.'" Outside assistance also
came from concerned citizens, according to the report which
continued: "Mrs. Florence Garrettson Spooner, representing
the Women's Prison Association, continues her visits to Deer
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Island and takes a most sincere interest in encouraging and
helping the women prisoners.”

Many of the programmatic and physical changes within the
building in later years are a result of the change in use
from a Women's to a Men's Prison. Although several
important modifications were made, these were largely a
result of maintenance and administrative considerations, as
well as the change of use.

Part ITI. Architectural Information

A. General Statement

1.

Architectural Character

The Hill Prison at Deer Island embodies distinctive
characteristics of the Classical Revival style of
architecture in New England. The five story brick and
granite structure with central core pavilion and flanking

wings is a refinement of the traditional penal institution
form utilized in Boston for over one hundred years. It
represents the full development of Palladian institutional
designs beginning with the Leverett Street Almshouse of
1800, progressing through the "T" form Houses of Correction
and Industry of 1825 at South Boston and the Charles Street
Jail and Deer Island Almshouse of 1850; although the Women's
(Hill) Prison has similar general form and materials, the
details of the structure reflects structural and
technological advances meeting twentieth century standards..

The "T" form of the building with central core and flanking
wings was intended to centralize control points at each
floor level; visual and physical control was made possible
by the introduction of stairs, administrative, medical, and
security facilities in the main block at the critical
juncture between the cell blocks in the east and west wings
and the common spaces in the north wing. The stacked cell
blocks, separated from the exterior walls by open
lightwells, allowed supervision from cantilevered access
galleries while preventing access to exterior windows as a
deterrent to escape.
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The Hill Prison is a load bearing masonry structure with a
steel framed interior structure and reinforced concrete slab
floors. The core block with its Palladian "Venetian"
entrance motif and monumental Doric order pilasters, at
corners and flanking the center bay, 1s of granite on the
front for the first two stories. Elsewhere it is of brick on
a cut granite underpinning. The flanking east and west
wings likewise have monumental brick pilasters for the full
height of the building; the original entablature and
cornices are missing. At each end, the slate-roofed gabled
wings were finished with pediments and occi windows with
four granite keystones. The core block is surmounted by a
neoclassical octagonal cupola with Tuscan columns at each
corner.

The interior structure is comprised of cast iron columns and
steel girders, with steel roof trusses. Throughout most of
the interior, particularly in the core block, metal columns
are encased with plaster columns of the Tuscan, Doric, or
Ionic order. This neoclassical decoration is carried
throughout the front offices, as well as the main hall with
its proscenium arch flanked by fluted pilasters and panelled
reveals and soffit. In general, it may be stated that the
building is an amalgamation of neoclassical details applied
to a modern structure.

Condition of Fabric:

The building is currently occupied and maintained as an

active men's house of correction. The roof and exterior
were recently renovated and are in fair to good condition.
Occupied sections of the interior: the main core, east and

west cell blocks, and the north wing are generally in good
condition. The unoccupied areas are generally in poor
condition, particularly the upper floors of the core block
and attic of the north wing which have not been maintained
for many years and exhibit extensive wear-and-tear. Surface
finishes are deteriorated with minor fire and water damage,
and with some destruction of plaster finishes, particularly
column coverings (see photos).
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B. Description of Exterior:

1.

Overall dimensions: Core Block 55 feet by 70.5 feet;
Flanking East and West wings 49.5 feet by 132 feet; North
Wing 50 feet by 163 feet, exclusive of bays and buttresses.

Foundations: Foundation walls are of cut granite on spread
footings.

Walls: Exterior walls are of brick on a cut granite
underpinning except granite on the front of the core block
for the first two stories.

Structural System: The Hill Prison is a locad bearing
masonry wall building with a steel-framed interior
structure. The interior structure is comprised of cast-iron
columns and steel girders, with a two-way reinforced cast
concrete floor structure and a steel truss roof. The north
wing's two end walls are each reinforced with two brick
"flying™ buttresses protected by granite capstones and
haunches.

Porches: There are no exterior porches on the prison;
however, an arched open loggia of granite with turned stone
balusters opens over the entrance at the second floor front
of the core block. Exterior corridors or loggias once
spanned between the open arches of flying buttresses on the
north wing at the second floor level as shown on the
drawings.

Chimneys: Brick chimneys which are shown on the core block
in the 1976 drawings were to have been repaired but have
since been removed. Four chimneys, two located at each end
wall of the core block, served fireplaces on the lower
levels and stoves in individual rooms above. A later
external chimney was added to the west side of the north
wing.

Openings:
a. Doorways and Doors:

Exterior doors are minimal on this secure prison facility.
The main entrance has an ornamental Palladian "Venetian”
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(arched door with sidelights) motif of carved granite; a
carved datestone inscription "A.D. 1901" is enclosed in
foliate wreaths in the quarter panels on each side of the
overdoor fanlight. Tuscan pilasters flank the door and
sidelights. The stone entablature, architrave and
ornamental keystone of the arch are academic in the
correctness of their Palladian proportions. The original
double glass and wood doors and sidelights evident in old
photographs were removed after 1985 and replaced with modern
flush panel steel doors. Similar doors were also installed
in former window openings of the first floor. These modern
doors are shown on the drawings in the right bay of the core
block, and at each end of the first floor east and west
wings. All other exterior doors on the flanking and north
wings are modern steel replacements, except one old iron or
steel door on the southwest side of the north wing.

Windows and Shutters:

Large cut granite bay windows project from the first and
second floor front of the core block, each originally
pierced with four windows per floor. These windows have
since been partially infilled on the first floor level with
two smaller modern sash installed in each opening. The
original windows in the core block of the prison, as
determined from one surviving remnant, were double-hung wood
sash with nine-over-one lights, set in wood frames. All have
been removed and replaced with modern metal sash units. The
north wing had large triple mullioned arched windows on the
upper levels which terminated with tripartite Romanesque
forms in the north wing and are still preserved behind later
coverings. Dormer windows of the core block had copper sash
and trim. Old steel bars at windows,except some on the first
level of the building, have been replaced with heavier
modern security grilles.

Roof:

a. Roof Shape, Covering:

The core block has a slate-covered hipped roof with copper
step flashing and ridge caps. Similar roofing exists on

flanking east and west wings and north wing except where
roofing has been replaced with substitute modern asphalt
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shingles of similar appearance, as on the north slope of the
east wing roof.

b. Cornice, Eaves:

All original cornices and eaves have been removed. Existing
evidence such as the shadows of earlier entablature frieze
and cornice trim at the eaves and pediments at the gable

ends confirms the existence of these features visible in *thea,
1929 aerial photograph #56ewRhoLowliRSuwdeed2bds) These
components were probably wooden elements with neoclassical
details, as suggested by stone trim of the main entrance.

The present gutters and downspouts are recent installations
of utilitarian design, close to the original locations.

c¢c. Dormers, Cupolas, Towers:

The roof of the core block has three hip-roofed dormers with
slate siding and roofs, and copper sash and trim. There are
three similar dormers at the rear of the core block, and a
similarly formed skylight over the auxiliary stair to upper
floor. The hipped roof of the core block is surmounted by a
slate clad cube, upon which sits a neoclassical octagonal
cupola of painted copper with Tuscan columns at each corner.

C. Description of Interior:
1. Floor Plans:

The "T" shaped building has four major levels, divided into
major components as described below and as shown on the
accompanying drawings:

a. Core Block:

Level 1: Administrative and support offices flank a central
lobby with three arched openings to the stairs opposite the
entry. To the left is the prison canteen and to the right
control offices with holding cells, security grates and
equipment

Level 2: Medical and visitation offices flank a smaller
central lobby with stairs at the rear and the entry loggia



DEER ISLAND HOUSE OF CORRECTION,
Hill Prison (Women's Prison)
HABS No. MA-1250-A (Page 14)

and reception room at the front. Arched openings of the
central lobby lead to flanking rooms on either side.

level 3: Officers' quarters living space and bedrooms flank
the central column-supported lobby. The lobby ceiling has a
skylight opening in the center with an arched opening to the
stair at the rear. To the left is a storage area and to the
right a stair to the upper level.

Level 4: Officers' quarters similar to those below flank the
central lobby with the skylight opening (now closed) and
paired bathrooms at the rear. To the left is a storage area
and to the right the stair to the third and fifth floors.

Level 5: Attic space has exposed steel roof truss framing
with a central, circular railed area which was apparently
intended to be open, with light coming down through the
octagonal rooftop cupola. This arrangement was superseded
by the installation of a wooden cistern which is supported
by the roof trusses and now blocks the skylight. The stair
at the right leads down to the fourth floor and the cupola
is reached by an iron spiral stair.

b. East and West Wings:

levels 1 to 4: The symmetrical, flanking east and west wings
have double ranges of cell blocks, back-to-back with
cantilevered access catwalks separated from the exterior
walls by approximately eight feet of open lightwells. Level
1 plans are representative of all levels.

c. North Wing:

Level 1: Down a half level from the core block, the north
wing contains an abandoned bakery, behind which is the old
kitchen and store rooms and a secondary egress stair for the

north wing. Down another half level at the front and under
the core block is a mechanical eguipment area.

Level 2: A newly-installed kitchen area is partitioned off
from the old dining hall, behind which is the secondary
egress stailr for the north wing and store rooms.
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Level 3: The main hall or auditorium, now a recreation room,
has a stage at one end and a column-supported balcony over
the entrance opposite. Doors flanking the stage lead to a
former office and small chapel, now gutted and renovated as
a drafting studio, behind which are store rooms and the
secondary egress stair.

level 4: A balcony overlooks the recreation room, behind
which is a sealed off area formerly used for recreation, and
possibly a chapel, with the tops of the tripartite
Romanesque sashes and Gothic arches visible; this area is
reached through the rear stair and store rooms.

Stairways:

The core block has a dog-leg or scissors stair of iron and
steel with terrazzo treads and landings, and ocak hardwood-
topped, painted steel square bar railings with scrollwork
top and bottom panels with panelled iron newel posts. Stairs
of similar construction lead to the fourth and fifth floors
with railings of similar design and either ball or flame
finials of cast-iron surrounding the skylight openings. The
metal spiral stair to the cupola has ornamental cast-iron
balusters.

Flooring:

The central lobby and vestibule area, as well as the stair
landings and utilitarian areas including the dining room
and bathrooms, all have terrazzo floors, in many cases
recently covered by linoleum tile. The terrazzo in the
entry vestibule and lobby has a dark border around the
lighter area field. Other floors in the officers' quarters
above are oak hardwood.

Wall and Ceiling Finishes.

Wall and ceiling finishes in the main administrative block
are painted plaster. Other utilitarian areas such as the
dining hall have painted brick walls, with a glazed brick
dado; ceilings are painted plaster, and in utilitarian
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areas, the concrete slab and cased frame structure are
painted.

Openings
a. Doors and Doorways:

Original doors in the core block are natural finish oak
panelled doors and trim, most of which have been painted
over. Cell doors are steel bar construction.

b. Windows:

As previously noted, original wood windows, nine-over-one,
double hung sash have been replaced with modern metal units.
Casings were varnished oak, now painted.

Decorative Features and Trim:

Ornamental plaster brackets and column capitals encase the
steel structure in the core block at each level in the lobby
areas. Other cast plaster decorative elements of the core
block include the ogee cornices and beam casings. Wood trim
elements include hardwood oak baseboards, chair rails, door
and window casings and panelled skylight opening fascias
and chimney breasts in the lower level rooms. Decorative
cast-iron elements are incorporated into the stairs and
railings as described previously (see photos).

Hardware:

Examples of mortise locks with brass round knobs have almost
entirely disappeared except for a few in the old officers'
quarters on the upper floors of the core block, and have
been replaced with modern units.
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8. Mechanical equipment:
a. Heating, Air conditioning and Ventilation:
The original steam heating system was supplied from a
central plant to cast-iron radiator units in the Hill Prison
and elsewhere on the grounds of the House of Correction.
Most ventilation was supplied through double hung window
units. Modern air conditioning units supply the
administrative areas of the building.
b. Lighting:
Incandescent lights were located in ceiling outlets
throughout the building but these have been replaced by
modern fluorescent fixtures.
c. Plumbing:
A few original vitreous china and porcelain coated cast-iron
plumbing fixtures with nickel plated brass faucets remain in
the Officers' Quarters of the building (see photos).

D. Site

1. General Setting and Orientation:
The building faces south overlooking Boston Harbor with a
distant view of Boston's downtown skyline.

2. Historic Landscape Design:

Major portions of the landscape were removed as part of the
construction of the new MWRA sewage treatment plant. This
has left little trace of the former layout of the House of
Correction property which is documented through historic
maps and views of the compleX (SofuwabARS LYl bt |
gt
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3. Outbuildings:

All early subsidiary ocutbuildings have been destroyed and
the only surviving auxiliary structures are temporary modern
modular cells and storage sheds erected in the last five
years. The relationship of the Hill Prison building to

former historic outbuildings is to be determined only from
old maps and views of Deer Island as previously described.

Part III. Sources of Information

A. Original Architectural Drawings:

No original architectural drawings of the Hill Prison have been
found. "~ The lack of drawings and historic photographs are due
to both restrictions regarding access to the island and
security of its buildings as a prison, and to fires in 1929 and
1949 in which some records are said to have been destroyed or
disappeared. Later architectural drawings dating to 1976
document the building at that time.

B. Early Views:

The scarcity of early views of the Hill Prison is apparently
due to restricted access to the island and its priscon
buildings, and the fires in 1929 and 1949. Photography has been
prohibited or strongly discouraged by prison officials.

Distant views of the Hill Prison from Point Shirley ca.1910-20
and 1952-3 are located in the Winthrop Public Library.
Nineteenth century views of the earlier Almshouse of 1850,
later the Administration Building of the House of Correction,
are in the Print Department of the Boston Public Library. A
view of the prison ferry, the steamer "Monitor" (with the seal
of the City of Boston on its side) built in 1904 at the time of
the construction of the Hill (Women's) Priscon, is in the
Stebbins Marine Photograph Collection at the Society for the
Preservation of New England Antiquities.
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Interviews:

Deer Island House of Correction officials stated that the
unavailability of on-site documentation for the structure is
due to the above reasons. Boston Public Facilities Department
interviews with Archivist James Cyphers and assistants Ian
Kerrigan and Lynn George led to the discovery of the plans
listed in the Bibliography below.
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Part IV. Project Information

Part

This documentation was undertaken by Frederic C. Detwiller,
Janice E. Slivko, Wendall C. Kalsow, David M. Hart and Paul
J. McGinley of McGinley Hart & Associates during 1991 as a
mitigation measure prior to the replacement of the prison by
a new wastewater treatment facility by the Massachusetts
Water Resocurces Authority. The documentation is undertaken
in compliance with a Memorandum of Agreement dated September
21, 1988 between the Advisory Council on Historic
Preservation; the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency,
Region I; the Massachusetts Historical Commission, SHPO; the
Massachusetts Water Resources Authority; and the
Massachusetts Division of Water Pollution Control.

V. Articles / Graphics (Xeroxes on archival bond)

Sketch Plans:

Figure 1. Location Plan

Figure 2. Site Plan

Figure 3. Level 1 Plan

Figure 4. Levels 2,3,4 North Wing Plan
Figure 5. Levels 2,3,4 Core Plan
Figure 6. Section A-A (East/West Wings)

Section C-C (Typical Cell Block Section)

Figure 7. Section B-B (North Wing)
North End Elevation

Figure 8. East Elevation
West Elevation

Figure 9. North Elevation
South Elevation
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Plan

1. Location

Figure
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Site Plan

Figure 2.
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Level 1 Plan

Figure 3.

LEVEL 1 PLAN
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Figure 4. Levels 2,3,4 North Wing Plan
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HABS No.

Levels 2,3,4 Core Plan

Figure 5.
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Section C-C (Typical Cell Block Section)

Section A-A (East/West Wings)

Figure 6.
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Section B-B (North Wing)

North End Elevation

Figure 7.
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Figure 8. East Elevation
West Elevation
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Figure 9. North Elevation
South Elevation
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